
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

June 4, 2013

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Singh.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 7

Public Hearing - May 21, 2013

Regular Meeting - May 21, 2013

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10847 (Z12-0064) - Parminder & Kulwant Hans and Gurdev &
Kamalpreet Gill, 275 Petch Road

8 - 8

To give Bylaw No. 10847 second and third reading.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. Mayor to invite
anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the required
variance(s) to come forward.

6.1 Bylaw No. 10809 (Z12-0068) - 1121, 1131, 1141 and 1151 Brookside Avenue 9 - 9

To adopt Bylaw No. 10809.

6.1.1 Bylaw No. 10800 - Housing Agreement - City of Kelowna and
Evergreen Lands Ltd. - 1121, 1131, 1141 and 1151 Brookside Avenue

10 - 17



To adopt Bylaw No. 10800.

6.1.2 Development Permit Application No. DP12-0212 and Development
Variance Permit Application No. DVP12-0213 - 1121, 1131, 1141 &
1151 Brookside Avenue

18 - 43

To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of the
proposed 70 unit purpose built rental townhouse development. To
consider a Development Variance Permit to vary site coverage for
buildings from 40% permitted to 41.6% proposed, for buildings and
parking from 60% permitted to 62.6% proposed and to vary the
parking from 97 stalls required to 83 stalls proposed.

6.2 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP13-0027 - 5330 Signet
Crescent, Craig Mohr

44 - 63

To obtain Council’s approval to issue a Development Variance Permit to vary
the maximum allowable height and spacing of an existing retaining wall
system.

6.3 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP13-0042 - 1-2368 Abbott
Street, Patricia Evans

64 - 72

To vary the required rear yard set back from 7.5m required to 5.0m proposed
to allow the construction of a sunroom.

7. Reminders

8. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10809 
Z12-0068 – Evergreen Lands Limited Inc. No. 382754  

1121, 1131, 1141 and 1151 Brookside Avenue 
 
 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lots 9-12, Section 19, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 2704 located on 
Brookside Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the 
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 25th day of February, 2013. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 9th day of April, 2013 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 9th day of April, 2013. 
 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act this 15th day of April 2013. 
 

Robyn Clifford 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

9



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10800 
 

Housing Agreement Authorization Bylaw 
Evergreen Lands Limited, Inc. No. 382754 –  
1121, 1131, 1141 & 1151 Brookside Avenue 

 

 
Whereas pursuant to Section 905 of the Local Government Act, a local government may, by 
bylaw, enter into a housing agreement. 
 
Therefore, the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts 
as follows:    
 
1. The Municipal Council hereby authorizes the City of Kelowna to enter into a Housing 

Agreement with Evergreen Lands Ltd., Inc. No. 382754 for the lands known as Lots 9, 
10, 11 and 12, Section 19, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 2704 located on 1121, 1131, 1141 
& 1151 Brookside Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., a true copy of which is attached to and forms 
part of this bylaw as Schedule “A”. 

 
2. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the attached agreement as 

well as any conveyances, deeds, receipts or other documents in connection with the 
attached agreement. 

 
3. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this 25th day of February, 2013. 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this   
 
 

 

                                                                              Mayor 
 
 

 

                                                                                  City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



Bylaw No. 10800 - Schedule “A” 

   

11



Bylaw No. 10800 - Schedule “A” 

   

12



Bylaw No. 10800 - Schedule “A” 

   

13



Bylaw No. 10800 - Schedule “A” 

   

14



Bylaw No. 10800 - Schedule “A” 

   

15



Bylaw No. 10800 - Schedule “A” 

   

 
 
 
 

16



Bylaw No. 10732 - Schedule “A” 

 

 

17



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 10th, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213 Owner: Evergreen Lands Limited, Inc. No. 382754 

Address: 1121, 1131, 1141 & 1151 Brookside Ave. Applicant: Meiklejohn Architects Inc. 

Subject: Development Permit & Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Final Adoption of the Zoning Amending Bylaw No. 10809 be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Final Adoption of the Housing Agreement Bylaw No. 10800 be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Permit No. DP12-0212 for Lot 9 Section 
19 Township 26 ODYD Plan 2704, located at 1121 Brookside Avenue, Lot 10 Section 19 Township 
26 ODYD Plan 2704, located at 1131 Brookside Avenue, Lot 11 Section 19 Township 26 ODYD Plan 
2704, located at 1141 Brookside Avenue, Lot 12 Section 19 Township 26 ODYD Plan 2704, located 
at 1151 Brookside Avenue, Kelowna, BC, Kelowna B.C., subject to the following: 
 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule "A"; 
 
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 
3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 
 
4. The applicant be required to post with the City a Landscape Performance Security deposit  
in the form of a "Letter of Credit" in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the 
landscaping, as determined by a professional landscaper; 
 
5.       Consolidation of the subject properties into a single title prior to issuance of the 

18



DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213– Page 2 
 

Development Permit; 
 
AND THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted condition No. 4 within 180 
days of Council approval of the Development Permit application in order for the permit to be 
issued. 
 
AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP12-0213 for 
Lot 9 Section 19 Township 26 ODYD Plan 2704, located at 1121 Brookside Avenue, Lot 10 Section 
19 Township 26 ODYD Plan 2704, located at 1131 Brookside Avenue, Lot 11 Section 19 Township 
26 ODYD Plan 2704, located at 1141 Brookside Avenue, Lot 12 Section 19 Township 26 ODYD Plan 
2704, located at 1151 Brookside Avenue, Kelowna, BC, Kelowna, B.C.;  
 
AND FURTHER THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 13.9.6 (b) Development Regulations – Site Coverage 
To vary the site coverage for buildings from 40% permitted to 41.6% proposed and for buildings, 
driveways and parking from 60% permitted to 62.6% proposed  
 
Table 8.1 – Parking Schedule 
To vary the parking from 97 stalls required to 83 stalls proposed. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a Development Permit for the form and character of the proposed 70 unit purpose 
built rental townhouse development. To consider a Development Variance Permit to vary site 
coverage for buildings from 40% permitted to 41.6% proposed, for buildings and parking from 60% 
permitted to 62.6% proposed and to vary the parking from 97 stalls required to 83 stalls 
proposed. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Land Use Management staff are supportive of the proposal, as it is seen to meet the objectives 
and supporting policies of the Official Community Plan (OCP). The subject property is located 
within the Capri / Landmark Urban Centre, along the Gordon Drive bus route and within walking 
distance to A.S. Mathison Elementary School and the Capri Centre Mall. The applicant will secure 
all 70 units as purposed built rental housing for a period of 10 years. The proposed development 
places a clear emphasis on human scale buildings that feature strong relationships to Brookside 
Avenue. 

The buildings represent a more contemporary form of architecture, the finishes are of a high 
quality, featuring contrasting blocks of colours and materials that serve to reduce massing and to 
emphasize building articulation. Decks have been incorporated to provide private open space 
facing the street and site landscaping uses native species, where possible, and complements the 
building design. The proposed variances are required in order to enable the developer to proceed 
with this form of project. The site coverage variances are relatively minor and the proposed 
parking variance has been subsequently reduced since the rezoning application was considered by 
Council at the public hearing. The proposal has been reduced from 72 units to 70 units while the 
total parking variance has been adjusted by 2 stalls to a 14 stall variance proposal. The property 
is located within the Capri / Landmark Urban Centre has great transit access and is within 
walking distance to various amenities. The applicant has other projects with similar parking 
calculations and has provided a rationale (attached at the end of this report) for how parking will 
be managed.  

19



DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213– Page 3 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The proposed development consists of a total of 70 dwelling units divided between 4 buildings; 
34 - 1 bedroom units and 36 - 2 bedroom units. Principal vehicular access for the units is via a 
driveway from Brookside Avenue. Parking for the development is located at the centre of the 
property with 46 of the stalls provided within carports. The applicant has proposed a parking 
variance which would provide each unit with 1 parking stall and a total of 13 visitor parking 
stalls. As this property is located within an Urban Centre, $7,500.00 per stall as cash-in-lieu 
would be the appropriate mechanism to overcome this shortfall.  However, as this is a purpose 
built housing project the applicant has asked that the parking be varied in accordance with the 
recently adopted Housing Strategy. Section 15 of the Housing Strategy suggests that parking 
should be reduced for multi family housing projects located within the Urban Core.    

Long term bicycle parking is provided within individual storage units, and short term bicycle 
parking is provided near the centre of the site adjacent to the visitor vehicle parking. Pedestrian 
circulation is provided between buildings and through the property and a sidewalk will be 
provided along Brookside Avenue. The Brookside Avenue frontage provides a strong pedestrian 
orientation, with main building entrances and patios. Such design elements serve to activate 
these building frontages with heightened levels of pedestrian activity. The buildings are 
representative of a more contemporary aesthetic, having flat roofs and clean building lines. 
While it would have been preferred to have a land assembly include the lots to the west that 
front onto Gordon Drive, the proposal aims to respond to the urban context and provide an active 
streetscape experience.  The proposal compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.85 0.74 

Site Coverage - Buildings 40% 41.6% ¹ 

Site Coverage – Buildings & Drive 60% 62.6% ² 

Height 10.0m / 3 Storeys 8.8m / 2.5 storeys 

Front Yard 1.5m 4.5m 

Side Yard (east) 4.0m 17.0m 

Side Yard (west) 4.0m 4.5m  

Rear Yard 7.5m 7.5m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 97 stalls  83 stalls ³ 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I: 34 stalls 
Class II: 7 stalls 

Class I: 34 stalls 
Class II: 7 stalls 

Private Open Space 1472m2 1472m2 

¹ To vary site coverage for buildings from 40% permitted to 41.6% proposed. 

² To vary site coverage for buildings and parking from 60% permitted to 62.6% proposed. 

³ To vary parking from 97 stalls required to 83 stalls proposed. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject properties are located within the Capri / Landmark Urban Centre in an area 
designated for a townhouse form of development. Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

 

 

20



DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213– Page 4 
 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Residential 

East RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Townhouse Development 

South P2 – Educational & Minor Institutional Church 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Residential 

Subject Property Map: 1121, 1131, 1141 & 1151 Brookside Ave. 
 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

5.1.1 Development Process (Chapter 5) - Considerations in Reviewing Development Applications 
 

Objective 5.8 Achieve high quality urban design. 
 

Streetscaping (Policy 2). Urban Centre roads should be considered as part of the public 
space and streetscaped with full amenities (i.e. sidewalks, trees and other planting, 
furniture, bike facilities, boulevards, etc.). 

 
Ensure opportunities are available for greater use of active transportation and transit 
to: improve community health; reduce greenhouse gas emissions; and increase 
resilience in the face of higher energy prices (Objective 5.10) 
 
Maximize Pedestrian / Cycling Connectivity. Require that pedestrian and cyclist 
movement and infrastructure be addressed in the review and approval of all City and 
private sector developments, including provision of sidewalks and trails and recognition of 
frequently used connections and informal pedestrian routes.  

21



DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213– Page 5 
 

Transit Infrastructure. Require that transit service needs to be integrated into 
community designs and development proposals to optimize access to transit service and 
incorporate essential infrastructure on transit routes identified. 

 
5.2.1 Urban Design Development Permit Areas (Chapter 14) – Revitalization Design Guidelines 
 

Objectives 

 Use appropriate architectural features and detailing of buildings and landscapes to 
define area character; 

 Convey a strong sense of authenticity through high quality urban design that is 
distinctive of Kelowna; 

 Enhance the urban centre’s main street character in a manner consistent with the 
area’s character; 

 Provide for a scale and massing of buildings that promotes an enjoyable living, 
pedestrian, working, shopping and service experience; 

 Encourage an appropriate mix of uses and housing types and sizes; 

 Design and facilitate beautiful public open spaces that encourage year-round 
enjoyment; 

 Create open, architecturally-pleasing and accessible building facades to the street; 
and 

 Improve existing streets and sidewalks to promote alternative transportation. 
 

Guidelines 
Relationship to the Street (Objective 2.0) 

 Ensure streetwall height is proportional (0.75:1 maximum) to the width of the street 
as measured from building face to building face. Any development that exceeds this 
height must utilize a podium and step back above the streetwall; 

 Provide for public movement, street furniture, and building access zones to be 
incorporated into sidewalks adjacent to development; 

 Design buildings to occupy 100% of a property’s frontage along streets, eliminating 
elements that disrupt the streetwall such as off-street parking, dead spaces, empty 
lots, or driveways; 

 Coordinate building setbacks with adjacent sidewalks to increase the space for public 
use (i.e., utilize a building setback or building indentation as a patio space or seating 
area, incorporate corner rounding into the public realm with specialized paving 
treatment and street furniture); 

 Provide a high quality public realm consistent with the character of urban 
development (i.e. incorporate focal points/plazas, pedestrian pathways, parks and 
open space, enhanced streetscapes, and landscaping). 

 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Demolition Permits required for any structures prior to them being taken down. 
2) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 

Building Permit(s) for new construction 
3) This property falls within the Mill Creek flood plain bylaw area and compliance is 

required. Minimum building elevations are required to be established prior to the 
release of the Development Permit. This building may be designed to low, which may 
affect the form and character of the building.  

22



DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213– Page 6 
 

4) Code analysis is required for the structure at time of building permit applications, but 
the following items may affect the form and character of the building.  
a. The area above the covered parking with welded wire mesh guards would be 

defined as climbable. These guards for the A2 assembly would be required to meet 
the minimum requirements for guards as defined in BCBC 

b. There does not seem to be good fire fighting access for the two internal buildings 
mainly (upper type B units). How would these units be addressed and has the fire 
department commented on required access routes as per BCBC?  

5) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Addressed as part of Z12-0068. 

6.3 Infrastructure Planning 

Transportation staff have not been able to locate any files pertaining to the closure of 
Brookside Avenue to vehicular through traffic. It is likely however that the closure was due to 
factors including the high number of multi-family units on the east leg of Brookside Avenue, 
proximity of Mill creek and an expectation that the western portion of Brookside Avenue, 
connecting to Gordon Dr, would be used as a short cut route if the connection was intact. 
High volumes of short-cutting would have created problems as there is not sufficient right-of-
way to build a proper cross-section to connect the two parts of Brookside Avenue. 
As part of the proposed development at 1121-1151 Brookside Ave, a sidewalk will be built 
along the development frontage and connect to the sidewalk at Gordon Dr. Due to the low 
vehicle volumes on this street, even after the traffic from the proposed development is 
added, it is felt that there is no need for any major improvements for this road. 
There would be a need for a continuous sidewalk along Brookside Avenue if the street were 
opened up to through traffic, as that would change the road classification from a local road 
to a minor collector. It should be noted that there is not currently sufficient right-of-way 
available to allow for continuous sidewalk.   

6.4 Bylaw Services – No concerns 

6.5 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 150ltr/sec 
flow. Confirm 6m emergency access. A fire department turn-a-round is required in an 
access exceeding 100m. On site fire hydrants will be required. 

6.6 Interior Health Authority 

This development proposal appears to be adjacent to the Capri/Landmark Urban Centre 
which aims to create a pedestrian friendly environment where mixed-use, commercial, 
and parks and opens spaces are encouraged. These concepts align with Interior Health's 
goal to create environments where the healthy choice is the easy choice to enhance 
physical, mental and social health. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: November 27th, 2013 
Zone Amend Bylaw (3rd Reading): April 9th, 2013 

23



DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213– Page 7 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Doug Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Sit Plan  
Elevations & Renderings 
Landscape Plan 
Applicant’s Parking Variance Rationale 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



 

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 
 

Development Permit No.:   DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213  

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 

  
RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing  
 
Revitalization Development Permit 

 

 
ISSUED TO:      Meiklejohn Architects Inc. 
  

  LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:     1121, 1131, 1141 & 1151 Brookside Ave. 
 

 

 LOT SECTION TOWNSHIP SECTION DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

9 19 26  ODYD 2704 

10 19 26  ODYD 2704 

11 19 26  ODYD 2704 

12 19 26  ODYD 2704 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits 
the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless 
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted 
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified 
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 
 

 

1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

1) The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 

Schedule "A"; 

 

2) The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance 

with Schedule “B”; 

 

3) Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "C"; 

 

AND FURTHER THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

 

Section 13.9.6 (b) Development Regulations – Site Coverage 

 To vary the site coverage for buildings from 40% permitted to 41.6% proposed and for buildings, 

driveways and parking from 60% permitted to 62.6% proposed  

41



- 2 - DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213 
 
 
 

 

 

Table 8.1 – Parking Schedule 

 To vary the parking from 97 stalls required to 83 stalls proposed. 

 

2. The development shall commence by and in accordance with an approved Building Permit within ONE YEAR of 

the date of the issuance by Council. 

 
3. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is 
returned.  The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the 
development hereby authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, 
the Municipality may use the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any 
surplus shall be paid over to the Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by 
this Permit within the time set out above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed 
accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $        N/A                . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of $           N/A                . 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of $          TBD. 
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the 

City with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes 
and costs have been paid. 

 
4. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 

42



- 3 - DP12-0212 / DVP12-0213 
 
 
 

 

or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Director of Land Use Management. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
5. APPROVALS: 
 
AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION PASSED BY MUNICIPAL COUNCIL THE 4th DAY OF JUNE, 2013. 
 
ISSUED BY THE LAND USE MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE _____ DAY OF JUNE, 2013, BY THE 
ACTING GENERAL MANAGER OF COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist  
Acting General Manager, Community Sustainability 

43



 

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 9, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: DVP13-0027 Owner: Craig Richard Mohr 

Address: 5330 Signet Crescent Applicant: 
Vineyard Mgmt. Ltd  
(Craig Mohr) 

Subject: Development Variance Permit   

Existing OCP Designation: Single/two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1H- Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorize the issuance of a Development Variance Permit No. DVP13-0027, for Lot 
5, Section 24, Township 28, SDYD, Plan KAP87210, located on 5330 Signet Crescent, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  
 
Section 7.5.9 – Fencing and Retaining Walls: 
      To vary the south portion of the east rock wall from 1.2 m permitted to 2.0 m proposed. 
      To vary the lower portion of the two tiered portion of the rock wall from 1.2 m permitted to 
      1.6 m proposed. 
      To vary the minimum vertical distance between the rock walls from 1.2 m permitted to  
      0.1 m proposed.     
 
AND THAT a building permit for the rock retaining walls be applied for prior to issuance of the 
Development Variance Permit; 
 
AND THAT a licence of occupation be applied for prior to issuance of the Development Variance 
Permit; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the wall be rebuilt to meet the City of Kelowna Traffic Bylaw 8120 sightline 
requirements as approved through the corresponding Building Permit. 

2.0 Purpose   

To obtain Council’s approval to issue a Development Variance Permit to vary the maximum 
allowable height and spacing of an existing retaining wall system. 

 

44



 
DVP13-0027 – Page 2 

 
 

 

3.0 Land Use Management   

The subject property has a height difference from the street level to the lane which is common 
to the corner lots along this area’s flanking streets. A walkout single family dwelling, with a 
single storey on the street front and the lower floor accessible from the lane is near completion.  
A retaining wall system was constructed on the eastern portion of the site which has impacted 
City services and encroaches on City land. The application seeks to vary the height and vertical 
depth of the walls and legalize their placement. Specifically, the retaining walls vary to a 
maximum height of 2.0m whereas 1.2m is permitted. The minimum permitted step back of a 
retaining wall is 1.2m, whereas the depths of these walls vary from 0.1m to 1.37m. 
 
Circulation comments highlighted a number of concerns pertaining to the wall placement and 
their impact on City infrastructure and potential liabilities. The walls were constructed without 
permits and encroach on the City boulevard. Other concerns include relocating City hook-up 
services without approvals, and future ability for the City to maintain utility services without 
disturbing the wall and sightline issues. Noted by the Development Engineering branch, in the 
event there is a future water main break, City crews would be required to demolish the wall to 
access these services and it would have to be rebuilt by the owner. 
 
In working with the applicant, Staff have been able to secure the appropriate engineering 
schedules providing structural, anchoring, and seismic restraint assurances to the satisfaction of 
the Chief Building Officer. Staff do not condone construction without permits, however the wall 
has been proven to be structurally sound, and the applicant has shown good faith in resolving 
some of the utility services issues and is committed to rebuilding a portion of the walls to meet 
City sightline requirements. Further, letters of support have been provided from all abutting 
neighbours.  
 
4.0 Proposal 
4.1 Background 

Retaining walls that exceed maximum height allowances were constructed on the subject 
property that encroach on the City boulevard over City services. The walls vary in height to a 
maximum of 2.0 meters of continuous wall.  There is a portion of the rock wall that is stepped 
back, which varies from a depth of 1.37m to 0.1m, triggering a variance for all portions less than 
1.2m in spacing. A variance for both the height and vertical distance between the walls is being 
requested. 
 
In reviewing the proposal, it was found that: 

 portions of the rock wall encroach on the City boulevard; 

 that the inspection chamber (IC) and water shut off were altered without City approval 
and were no longer accessible; 

 the walls obstruct site lines requirements as per Traffic Bylaw 8120; and 

 the functionality of the fire hydrant at the site’s rear was impeded. 
 
Since making application, the applicant has adjusted the IC, water shut off and the fire hydrant 
accessibility to the City’s satisfaction. They have committed to reconstructing portions of the 
retaining walls that are causing site line issues pending favorable consideration by Council.  
 
Staff appreciate that action has been taken to remedy some immediate concerns however there 
are still situations where the wall will impede the City’s ability to maintain and service the water 
shutoff valve if required. Considering that the wall is partially on the boulevard, road clearing 

45



 
DVP13-0027 – Page 3 

 
 

 

and maintenance could be impacted. The Building and Permitting comments have been resolved 
with the schedules of assurance from a registered Professional Engineer.  
 
Should Council consider this variance favorably, the property owner would be required to 
reconstruct those portions of the wall that impede traffic sightlines, apply for a licence of 
occupation for the portions of the wall that encroach on City land, and understand that should 
the wall need to be removed for maintenance issues, it would be at the owner’s cost and 
responsibility to replace it.   

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the south slopes in the south west Mission Area. The area is 
characterized by new dwellings.  The adjacent land uses in all directions are RU1h- Large Lot 
housing (Hillside area). 

4.3  Subject Property Map: 5330 Signet Crescent 
 

 

4.4    Zoning Analysis Table 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RU1h- Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone 
as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1H ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 550 m2 965 m2 

Lot Width 15 m 27.8 m 

Lot Depth 30 m 33.4 m 

Development Regulations 

Maximum retaining wall 
height 

1.2m  Varies up to 2.0m 

Minimum retaining wall 
spacing 

1.2m  Varies from 0.1m to 1.37m 

   

46



 
DVP13-0027 – Page 4 

 
 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies and Bylaws 

5.1 Zoning Bylaw 8000 

Section 7.5.9 Retaining walls on all residential lots, except those required as a condition of 
subdivision approval, must not exceed a height of 1.2 m measured from grade on the lower side, 
and must be constructed so that any retaining walls are spaced to provide at least a 1.2 m 
horizontal separation between them. 
 
5.2 Official Community Plan Hillside Guidelines: 

Landscaping and Retaining Walls1 

 Incorporate landscaping that is natural and blends in with any existing vegetation 
minimizing large areas of formal landscaping; 

 Preserve existing plant materials of significant size or relocate within the site; 

 Incorporate landscaping that enhances building design and architectural elements; 

 Re-vegetate any unavoidable cut and fill along ridgelines with natural landscaping; 

 Minimize the impact of development by screening structures through effective use of 
landscaping materials; 

 Incorporate retaining walls utilizing native building materials (i.e., earth berms, rock 
forms, or stone) to minimize the visual impact of cuts; 

 Minimize fence and retaining wall height and length. Stepped or terraced walls with 
landscaping are encouraged for areas where steep cuts are required. 

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 
Geotechnical Engineer required for the wall design at time of building permit application. 

The clarification of a geotechnical engineer for the over height rock walls on city property 
would be to limit liability for the city due to the potential of falling rocks or retained land 
movement. If this wall was to be reconstructed on the owners property and meet the 
heights allowable in the zoning bylaw the risks to the public should be greatly reduced. 
The responsibility for the design of landscaping is typical of all residential lots being 
developed within the prescriptive requirements of the zoning bylaw and should be easily 
achievable without hardship. 

May 8th revision- Received Schedule B, C-B, from Gable LeBihan, P. Eng. allow with 
schedule D of insurance to satisfaction of the Building and Permitting Branch. 

Building Permit is required. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 
See attached. 

6.3 Shaw Cable 
Rock wall height change, make sure rock wall isn't built over top of existing conduit on 
the east and south sides of property. 

7.0 Application Chronology    

Date of Application Received: February 18, 2013  
Date of submission Correction:  April 23, 2013 

                                                
1
 Official Community Plan – Hillside Guideline Chapter 14 

47



 
DVP13-0027 – Page 5 

 
 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, 
Community Sustainability 

Attachments:   

Site Plan  
Conceptual Elevations (dwelling) 
Elevations photo (retaining wall) 
Context/Site Photos 
Summary of Technical Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

48



 
DVP13-0027 – Page 6 

 
 

 

 

49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 

 

 Development Variance Permit No .: DVP13-0037 
 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 

 
RU1h – Large Lot Housing (Hillside) 
 
Zoning Bylaw Section 7.5.9 – Fencing and Retaining walls 
To vary the permitted height and depth of retaining walls  
 

 

 

ISSUED TO:  Craig R. Mohr  (Vineyard Mgmt. Ltd)            
   
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:    5330 Signet Crescent 
 

 

 

 LOT D.L. PLAN SECTION TOWNSHIP DISTRICT 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

 
5   

 
  

 
 KAP87210 

 
24  

 
28  

 
SDYD  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, 
except as specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the Applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision 
Control Bylaw unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from 
bylaw provisions shall be granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw 
provisions and which may not have been identified as required Variances by the Applicant or City staff. 
 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 

THAT a variance to the following section of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 are granted:  

 

Section 7.5.9 – Fencing and Retaining Walls: 

      To vary the south portion of the east rock wall from 1.2 m permitted to 2.0m proposed. 

      To vary the lower portion of the two tiered portion of the rock wall from 1.2m permitted to 

      1.6m proposed. 

      To vary the vertical distance between the rock walls from 1.37m permitted to  

      0.0m proposed.     

 

AND THAT a building permit for the rock retaining walls be applied for prior to issuance of the 

Development Variance Permit; 

 
61



 - 2 - DVP13-0027 
 

AND THAT a licence of occupation be applied for prior to issuance of the Development Variance 

Permit; 

 

AND FURTHER THAT the wall be rebuilt to meet the City of Kelowna Traffic Bylaw 8120 sightline 

requirements as approved through the corresponding Building Permit. 

   
2. PERFORMANCE SECURITY: None Required. 
 
3. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 

and provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall 
form a part hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of 

the date of this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 
 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization 

to transfer the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
4. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material 

submitted in support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  
Upon issuance of the Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to 
save harmless and effectually indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and 

by whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me 

of engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any 
property owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or 
custom is obliged, directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or 
maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development 

Variance Permit, the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the 
occupancy and/or use of any building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to 
land until all of the engineering works or other works called for by the Permit have been completed 
to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and Director of Land Use Management. 

 

62



 - 3 - DVP13-0027 
 
 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land 
Use Management Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________
_ 
Date 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
6. APPROVALS: 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY COUNCIL ON THE ___th DAY OF JUNE, 2013. 
 
ISSUED BY THE LAND USE MANAGEMENT DEPT. OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___TH DAY OF JUNE 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community Sustainability 
For the Director of Land Use Management 
 

63



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: May 9, 2013 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: DVP13-0042 Owner: Patricia Clara Evans 

Address: #1 – 2368 Abbott Street Applicant: 
Gord Turner Renovations 
Ltd. 

Subject: Development Variance Permit   

Existing OCP Designation: Single/ Two Unit Residential  

Existing Zone: RU1- Large Lot Housing  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP13-0042, for Strata 
Lot 1, District Lot 14, ODYD Plan K721 together with an interest in the common property in 
proportion to the unit entitlement of the strata lot as shown on form 1 located on 2368 Abbott 
Street, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 13.1.6 (e) Development Regulations: 
  
             To vary the rear yard setback from 7.5 m permitted to 5.0m proposed (as per  
             Schedule “A”). 

2.0 Purpose   

To vary the required rear yard set back from 7.5m required to 5.0m proposed to allow the 
construction of a sunroom. 

3.0 Land Use Management   

The applicant is seeking to construct a 16.25 m2 addition to the rear of the dwelling.  A variance 
to the rear yard is triggered by the siting of the proposed addition. The addition is anticipated to 
blend seamlessly into the existing dwelling and not be visible from Abbott Street or the internal 
strata road. As the variance is considered to be modest relaxation to the rear setback and all 
impacted property owners are in support, Staff are supportive of the proposal.  

 

64



DVP13-0042 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The property owner has been considering an addition to the dwelling for a number of years and is 
finally making application to facilitate the proposal. The proposed sunroom addition encroaches 
into the required rear yard setback, thereby triggering the need for a variance.   

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the south side of Abbott Street within the lake front “Le 
Chateau” complex. It is located behind the Regional Hospital in the KLO/Pandosy sector of 
Kelowna.  The surrounding properties in all directions are zoned RU1- Large Lot Housing.  

4.3  Subject Property Map:  2368 Abbott Street 

 

4.4     Zoning Analysis Table 

The proposed application meets the requirements of RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone as follows:   

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Front Yard 6.0 m 6.0 m 

Side Yard (south) 2.0 m (for 1 – 1 ½ storey)  2.08 m 

Side Yard (north) 2.0 m 3.61 m 

Rear Yard 7.5 m 5.0 m  

  Variance sought to reduce the rear yard from 7.5m required to 5.0m proposed 

5.0 Technical Comments   

5.1 Building & Permitting Department 

Building Permit required. 

65



DVP13-0042 – Page 3 

 
 

5.2 Development Engineering Department 

The Development Variance Permit to vary rear yard setback from 7.5m to 5.00m does not 
compromise any municipal services.  

6.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: April 8, 2013  

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, 
Community Sustainability 

Attachments:   

Site Plan (Schedule A) 
Conceptual Elevations 
Floor Plan 

66



67



68



69



70



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Variance Permit No.:  DVP13-0042 

 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 

 
RU1- Large Lot Housing  
 
To vary the required rear yard setback  

 

 
ISSUED TO:           Patricia Evans    (Applicant Gord Turner Renovations) 
  

  LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:  #1- 2368 Abbott Street 
 

 

 LOT SECTION D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 Strata Lot 1   14   ODYD 

K721  
together with an 

interest in the common 
propoerti in proportion 
to the unit entitlement 
of the strata as shown 

on form 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Development Permit and/or Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw 
unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be 
granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been 
identified as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
Section 13.1.6 (e) Development Regulations: 
  
             To vary the rear yard setback from 7.5 m permitted to 5.0m proposed (as per  
             Schedule “A”). 

 
2. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and provisions 

of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part hereof. 
 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of this 

Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 

71



- 2 - 
  DVP13-0042 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer the 

Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 

3 PERFORMANCE SECURITY: Not applicable. 
 
  
4. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in support 

of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the Permit for me by 
the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually indemnify the 
Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property owned 
in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, directly or 
indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, the 

Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any building or 
part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works or other works 
called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and Director of 
Planning & Development Services. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Land Use 
Management Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
 
6. APPROVALS: 
 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE  ___
th

 DAY OF MAY, 2013. 

 

ISSUED BY THE ACTING GENERAL MANAGER OF COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___ DAY 

OF MAY, 2013. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 

Acting General Manager, Community Sustainability 

72


	Agenda
	3. Minutes - May 21, 2013 Public Hearing.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3. Minutes - May 21, 2013 Regular Meeting.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 BL10847 - Z12-0064.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 BL10809 Z12-0068 Brookside_1121 1131 1141 1151.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.1.1 BL10800_-_Housing_Agreement-_Evergreen_Lands_Limited_-_Brookside_Ave[1].docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.1.2 DP12-0212_Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.1.2 dp12-0212 attachments 2.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.1.2 DP12-0212_Permit.doc
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 DVP13-0027 COUNCIL.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 dvp13-0027 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 DVP13-0027 Permit.doc
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 DVP13-0042 Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 dvp13-0042 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 DVP13-0042 draft Permit.docx
	Back to Agenda


